Vestavia Hills
City Council Agenda
December 10, 2018

6:00 PM

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation — Steve Dedmon, Vestavia Hills Chaplin

4. Pledge Of Allegiance

5. Candidates, Announcements and Guest Recognition

6. Presentation — Tricia Kirk, The Exceptional Foundation

7. Proclamation — Human Trafficking Awareness Month — January 2019

8. City Manager’s Report

9. Councilors’ Reports

10.  Approval of Minutes — November 19, 2018 (Work Session), November 26, 2018 (Regular
Meeting) and November 28, 2018 (Work Session)

Old Business

11. Resolution Number 5112 — A Resolution Accepting A Bid For the Green Valley Sidewalk
Addition Project (public hearing)

New Business

12. Resolution Number 5113 — A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Vestavia
Hills To Address Certain Cahaba Beach Road Extension Alternatives Being Considered
By The Alabama Department Of Transportation

13. Resolution Number 5114 - A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills
Library Board

14. Resolution Number 5115 - A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills
Library Board

15. Resolution Number 5116 - A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills
Parks And Recreation Board

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested)

16. Resolution Number 5118 — A Resolution Declaring An Emergency And Authorizing The
City Manager To Replace The Emergency Power Generator That Serves The Vestavia



Hills James F. Wyatt Fire Station Number 5 And The Cahaba Heights Police Substation
At A Cost Not To Exceed $18,000 (public hearing)

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting)

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,
25.

Ordinance Number 2810 — Rezoning — 4517 Pine Tree Circle; Rezone From Vestavia Hills
R-1 (Low Density Residential District) To VH O-1 (Office District); Mark Hancock,
Hancock Construction, Owner (public hearing)

Ordinance Number 2811 — Conditional Use Approval — 2301 Old Columbiana Road;
Conditional Use Approval For Outdoor Recreation; The Property Is Currently Zoned
Vestavia Hills B-2 (General Business District) With Restrictions; Richard Pennino,
(public hearing)

Ordinance Number 2812 — An Ordinance To Partner With The CoachSafely Foundation
Pursuant To The Coach Safety Act, Also Known As Act Number 2018-496 As Adopted
By The Alabama Legislature, 2018 Regular Session And Authorizing A Partnership
Between The CoachSafely Foundation And The City Of Vestavia Hills Parks And
Recreation Department  (public hearing)

Ordinance Number 2813 — An Ordinance To Rescind Ordinance Number 2627 And
Article XI, Section 8-281 Thru 8-293 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Relating
To Licenses And Regulation Of Transportation Network Companies (“TNC”)  (public
hearing)

Ordinance Number 2814 — An Ordinance To Adopt Regulations For Small Cell
Technology Facilities In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (public hearing)

An Ordinance To Establish A Fee Structure For Small Cell Technology Facilities In The
City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama As Established By Ordinance Number 2814 (public
hearing)

Resolution Number 5117 — A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And
Deliver An Agreement For Services With The Regional Planning Commission Of Greater
Birmingham For An Apple Grant For “Vestavia Hills Traffic Operations Study Phase 1”
(public hearing)

Citizen Comments

Motion For Adjournment



City Council Minutes
Work Session
Page 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
CITY COUNCIL

MINUTES

WORK SESSION

NOVEMBER 19, 2018

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular work session on this date at
6:00 PM following posting/publication as required by Alabama law. The Mayor called the
meeting to order and the roll with the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Ashley C. Curry
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem
Kimberly Cook, Councilor
Paul J. Head, Councilor
George Pierce, Councilor

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Jeff Downes, City Manager
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk
Danny Rary, Police Chief
Melvin Turner, Finance Director
Christopher Brady, City Engineer
Brian Davis, Public Services Director

ATHLETIC FACILITY SHARING AGREEMENT -
VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION

Dr. Todd Freeman addressed the Council to update them on the purchases of Berry
School and Gresham School. He stated that the purchase of these athletic fields could lead
to a useful cooperative between the City and the Board of Education. He suggested the
formation of a small committee to begin to brainstorm and sketch out the school and the
City’s needs for athletic programming and then come back and report and work with the
City during the programming study for the Community Spaces plan in order to allow more
effective coordination.

Mrs. Cook emphasized that parking for both school and City activities would be
crucial in utilizing these athletic facilities. Dr. Freeman agreed.

Mr. Pierce asked about the tennis courts and usage of them. Discussion ensued.



City Council Minutes
Work Session
Page 2

PRESENTATION - LAMAR SIGNS -TOM TRAYLOR

Tom Traylor addressed the Council and described a concept of a billboard
reduction, which would allow Lamar signs to remove certain billboards within the City of
Vestavia in exchange for placing a two-face electronic billboard adjacent to Montgomery
Highway and Interstate 65. He stated that he has been working on this concept for several
years and believes he might be nearing a point where he can submit a formal application.

POE DRIVE SIDEWALK PROJECT

Mr. Brady explained a possible public-private sidewalk partnership agreement to
place sidewalks in the Poe Drive/Fairhaven area where a lot of redevelopment has and is
taking place. He stated that he has been meeting with one of the developers in the area,
Charles Kessler, who proposes partnering with the city to build about 1,000 linear feet of
sidewalk. He stated these streets are not a high priority according to the master sidewalk
plan, but the opportunity to partner with the private developer to reduce the cost to the City
for installation of sidewalks is one the Council might want to consider.

Discussion ensued regarding the possible partnering with developers in the area,
the need for sidewalks, roadway widths and existing potholes that haven’t been corrected.
Mr. Brady stated that ongoing construction in the area means it will be some time before
the sidewalks can be installed and roadway paved.

SMALL CELLULAR TECHNOLOGY

Mr. Downes gave an update on his review of possible ordinances and discussions
with AT&T regarding small cell technology. He stated that he expects a draft ordinance
to begin to move forward soon.

CAHABA BEACH ROAD UPDATE

Mrs. Cook gave an update on the alternatives of Cahaba Beach Road and the
Birmingham City Council and Birmingham Water Works Board actions on this matter. She
mentioned the City may want to consider taking a position.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:42 PM.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor



City Council Minutes
Work Session
Page 3

ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



City Council Minutes
November 26, 2018
Page 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES

NOVEMBER 26, 2018

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM,
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law. Mayor Curry called the meeting to
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Ashley C. Curry
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem
Kimberly Cook, Councilor
Paul Head, Councilor
George Pierce, Councilor

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Jeff Downes, City Manager
Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk
Melvin Turner, Finance Director
George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director
Dan Rary, Police Chief
Jason Hardin, Deputy Police Chief
Marvin Green, Fire Chief
Christopher Brady

The Mayor asked everyone to keep Judge Alan King and his family in their thoughts and
prayers. He explained that the Judge and his family were struck by a vehicle when they were
crossing a street in Colorado over the Thanksgiving holidays. Judge King and his daughter were
injured and his wife was killed. The Mayor reminded the Council that Judge King administered
the Oath of Office for this Council, is a resident of the City and is a valued member of the
Community. The Mayor asked everyone to join with him to lift the King family up in prayer.

Tom Bell, Vestavia Hills Chaplin, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance.

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION

e Mr. Pierce asked everyone to please shop local in the City and gave a listing of the events
scheduled in celebration of Holidays in the Hills. He stated that the events are listed in
the Chamber’s website.



City Council Minutes
November 26, 2018
Page 2

Mr. Pierce asked everyone to shop local and support local businesses.
Mayor Curry introduced and congratulated Alabama Representative-Elect, District 47,
David Wheeler.

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

Mr. Downes stated that the City has begun 22 miles of paving within the City. He
described the areas to be paved and stated the paving would be ongoing for the next two
months.

Mr. Downes stated the base work for the roadway expansion at Liberty Parkway will begin
soon. He stated maps are posted on the City’s website under the City Projects page, which
details the project.

Mrs. Cook asked about the status of utility projects on Shades Crest Road. Mr. Brady
explained some problems with rock situations have caused delays and indicated that it
may be next summer before the roadway can be paved. Mrs. Cook asked if the road would
be striped soon, citing resident complaints about traffic safety in its current condition. Mr.
Brady said he would look into it.

Mr. Downes stated that the City Council authorized the purchase of a new radio system
for the City’s first responders. He asked both Fire Chief Green and Police Chief Rary to
speak to the use of this system.

o0 Chief Green stated that the new system allows immediate communications with
many of the surrounding departments to assist in any mutual-aid calls or
assistance. He stated that, last week, Homewood had a fire fatality and that they
were able to assist and communicate with sister stations using these new radios.

o Chief Rary stated that the radios have helped their department to assist in
surrounding municipalities and allow communications directly with the
dispatchers of these other jurisdictions. He stated that, over the holidays, their
assistance was needed in a sister city and the radios allowed communication
directly with other cities’ dispatchers.

COUNCILOR REPORTS

Mrs. Cook stated that she attended the Board of Education Work Session Monday
afternoon. She stated that they are beginning the process of accreditation, which is a
combination of self-evaluation along with external evaluations in order to provide the best
education possible for students. She stated that surveys will be taken and she hopes
everyone will participate when given the opportunity.

Mr. Pierce stated that the new Chamber officers will take office in December at the next
Chamber luncheon.

Mr. Head stated that the Parks and Recreation Board met in Work Session a week ago
Friday and a program, called Coach Safely, has been introduced and will be coming to
Council soon for approval. He stated this will improve youth safety and was unanimously
approved by the Park Board. The Mayor explained the concept of the program which was



City Council Minutes
November 26, 2018
Page 3

passed in the form of a State of Alabama Act, called the Coach Safely Act. Mr. Head and
the Mayor commended the program.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes of the following meeting was presented for approval: November 13, 2018
(Regular Meeting).

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the November 13, 2018
(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second
by Mr. Pierce. Roll call vote as follows:

Mrs. Cook — yes Mr. Head — yes
Mr. Pierce — yes Mr. Weaver — yes
Mayor Curry — yes Motion carried.

OLD BUSINESS

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2805

Ordinance Number 2805 — Rezoning — 3070 Green Valley Road, Lots 1, 2, 3 & 4,
Meadowlawn Estates, First Addition Less And Except ROW Granted To
Jefferson County; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-4 (Medium Density
Residential District) To VH O-1 (Office District); Horton Realty, Inc.,
Owners (public hearing)

MOTION  Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2805 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr.
Pierce.

Mr. Weaver stated that this request is a correction of an error which occurred during the
annexation and compatible rezoning of the Cahaba Heights area. The appropriate zoning should
have been O-1. The Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of this request.

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. There being no one to address the
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.

Mrs. Cook — yes Mr. Head — yes
Mr. Pierce — yes Mr. Weaver — yes
Mayor Curry — yes Motion carried.

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2806

Ordinance Number 2806 — Rezoning — 1200 Vestavia Place; Lot 28, Block 7, Waldridge
Terrace; Smith Corretti, LLC, Owners; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-7



City Council Minutes
November 26, 2018
Page 4

(Duplex And Triples Residential District) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned
Residential Community District) (public hearing)

Mr. Weaver stated that this property was zoned as a part of a duplex/triplex development
but later was primarily developed as single family. This request is for a single-family residence.

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.

James Weaver, 1226 Vestavia Place, stated he is an owner of property in the area and
clarified that the proposed home will face Vestavia Place, which was confirmed by the Clerk. He

also asked about whether the home would be on a private sewer system.

Cooper Smith, applicant, stated that the house will face Vestavia Place and that they are
familiar with the sewer system as his relatives also built along that street.

MOTION  Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2806 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs.
Cook.

There be no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called
for the question.

Mrs. Cook — yes Mr. Head — yes
Mr. Pierce — yes Mr. Weaver — yes
Mayor Curry — yes Motion carried.

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2807

Ordinance Number 2807 — Rezoning - An Ordinance To Further Amend The Zoning
Ordinance And The Zoning Map Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama,
Adopted September 16, 1985, And As Last Amended So As To Approve The
Second Amendment To Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development Zoning
Application And Development Plan Dated September 6, 2018, To Increase
The Number Of Attached Dwelling Units Within Certain Property Within
The Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development And To Rezone Five Single
Family Residential Lots From Vestavia Hills PUD (Planned Unit
Development) To Vestavia Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential District
(public hearing)

MOTION  Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2807 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr.
Pierce.

Mr. Weaver stated that this request would be to remove the five single-family detached
units from the PUD and to rezone them to Vestavia Hills R-1. The second part of this request
would be to add an additional 30 attached units for a hotel/condominium addition to the PUD.



City Council Minutes
November 26, 2018
Page 5

Christopher Reibels is present to represent this request. This is coming with a unanimous vote of
recommendation for approval from the Commission.

Chris Reibels explained that his request would be to construct a hotel that is allowed by
the use and this request would be to allow an additional 30 units. He showed “fly thru” of the
proposal and explained the concept.

Discussion ensued as to the amount of meeting space, expected time of construction,
estimated purchase price of the condominiums, etc.

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. There be no one to address the Council,
the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.

Mrs. Cook — yes Mr. Head — yes
Mr. Pierce — yes Mr. Weaver — yes
Mayor Curry — yes Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT)

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)

The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on December 10, 2018, and December 17,
2018, at 6:00 PM.

. Resolution Number 5112 — A Resolution Accepting A Bid For the Green Valley Sidewalk
Addition Project (public hearing scheduled for Monday, December 10, 2018)
o Ordinance Number 2810 — Rezoning — 4517 Pine Tree Circle; Rezone From Vestavia

Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential District) To VH O-1 (Office District); Mark Hancock,
Hancock Construction, Owner (public hearing scheduled for Monday, December 17,
2018)

. Ordinance Number 2811 — Conditional Use Approval — 2301 Old Columbiana Road;
Conditional Use Approval For Outdoor Recreation; The Property Is Currently Zoned
Vestavia Hills B-2 (General Business District) With Restrictions; Richard Pennino,
(public hearing scheduled for Monday, December 17, 2018)

CITIZEN COMMENTS

None.



City Council Minutes
November 26, 2018
Page 6

At 6:31 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 6:32 PM.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



MEMBERS PRESENT:

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

CITY COUNCIL

MINUTES

WORK SESSION

NOVEMBER 28, 2018

City Council Minutes
Work Session
Page 1

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular work session on this date at
7:30 AM following posting/publication as required by Alabama law. The Mayor called
the meeting to order and the roll with the following:

Mayor Ashley C. Curry

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem

Kimberly Cook, Councilor
Paul J. Head, Councilor
George Pierce, Councilor

The Mayor presented the interview schedules for both Parks and Recreation
applicants and the Library Board applicants and the applicants were interviewed, as
follows:

Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Board

7:30 - 8:00
8:00 -8:30
8:30 - 9:00
9:00-9:30
9:30-10:00

10:00 - 10:30

10:30 - 11:00
11:00 - 11:30
11:30 - 12:00

Lyles Box

Courtney Hatchett

Jay Morrow

Shelley Gentle

Donald “Donnie” Winningham

Robert Garris
Jeremy Owen
Chad A. Quattlebaum

Vestavia Hills Library Board

12:00 - 12:30

12:30 -1:30 PM

1:30 - 2:00
2:00 - 2:30
2:30-3:00
3:00 - 3:30
3:30-4:00

Chad A. Quattlebaum

Lunch

Kevin Archer

Greg Dunaway

Tina Sheikhzeinoddin

Jerome Gilroy

April Marie Jackson-MacLennan



City Council Minutes
Work Session
Page 2
e 4:00-4:30 Gregory K. Laughlin
e 4:30-5:00 William Clabrun “Clabe” Dobbs Il1

The following individual submitted an application but subsequently withdrew her
name from consideration:

e Ashley Smith
The Council discussed the merits of the applicants.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:10 PM.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Resolution Number 5112
Page 1

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5112

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR THE GREEN VALLEY
SIDEWALK ADDITION PROJECT
WHEREAS, on October 18, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read
aloud bids submitted for the Green Valley Road Sidewalk Addition; and
WHEREAS, the City Engineer has reviewed the bids, detailed them in an Interoffice
Memorandum to the City Council and City Manager dated November 19, 2018 and recommended
acceptance of the bid submitted by Triple J Construction. A copy of said Interoffice Memorandum
is marked as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5112 as if written
fully therein; and
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the
recommendation of the City Engineer and accept said bid as detailed in Exhibit A.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:
1. The bid submitted by Triple J Construction as detailed in attached Exhibit A and
recommended by the City Engineer, is hereby accepted; and
2. The City Manager is hereby authorized the expenditure of said funds from the Capital
Projects Fund,;
3. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver all required
agreements, contracts and documents in order to complete said project; and
4. This Resolution Number 5112 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and
approval.
DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Exhibit A

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES

OFFICE OF CITY ENGINEER
INTER-DEPARTMENT MEMO

November 19,2018

To:  Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk

CC: Jeff Downes, City Manager
Brian Davis, Director of Public Services

From: Christopher Brady, City Engineer

RE:  Green Valley Sidewalk Bid Award

On October 18, 2018, the City received 4 bids to construct the Green Valley Road Sidewalk Addition.
Please see attached Bid Summary.

We recommend award of bid to Triple J Construction with a contract amount of $125,095.

Please let me know if questions,

Sincerely,
-Christopherd Eg él



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
Green Valley Road Sidewalk Addition

BID TABULATION

| BID OPENING: October 18, 2018, 10am

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5112

America's Best Concrete Construction

Bulls Construction Group

Gillespie Construction

Triple J Construction

Item Unit  [Bid Qty unit_price total unit price total unit_price total unit price total
5' Wide Concrete Sidewalk, 4" Thick SY 540 $ 57.00 [ $ 30,780.00 | $ 75.00 | $ 40,500.00 | $ 48.00 | $ 25,920.00 | $ 69.25 | $ 37,395.00
Concrete Curb & Gutter LF 250 $ 86.00 [ $ 21,500.00 |$ 50.00 | $ 12,500.00 | $ 30.00 | $ 7,500.00 | $ 40.00 | $ 10,000.00
Concrete Valley Gutter LF 40 $ 30.00 | $ 1,200.00 |$ 40.00 [ $ 1,600.00 | $ 50.00 | $ 2,000.00 | $ 25.00 | $ 1,000.00
Crosswalk Striping (Min 6' width) LF 100 $ 19.00 | $ 1,900.00 | $ 35.00 | $ 3,500.00 | $ 48.00 | $ 4,800.00 | $ 20.00 | $ 2,000.00
2' Wide Stop Bar Striping LF 70 $ 27.00 | $ 1,890.00 | $ 35.00 | $ 2,450.00 | $ 50.00 | $ 3,500.00 | $ 20.00 | $ 1,400.00
Blackout Existing Striping LS 1 $ 1,800.00 | $ 1,800.00 | $ 2,500.00 | $ 2,500.00 | $ 1,500.00 |$ 1,500.00 | $ 300.00 |$ 300.00
Install Handicap Ramp EA 8 $ 540.00 | $ 4,320.00 |$ 2,500.00 | $ 20,000.00 | $ 1,650.00 | $ 13,200.00 | $ 2,000.00 | $ 16,000.00
18" RCP Drainage Piping LF 100 $ 224.00 | $ 22,400.00 | $ 100.00 | $ 10,000.00 | $ 140.00 | $ 14,000.00 | $ 40.00 | $ 4,000.00
Concrete Junction Box EA 4 $ 1,440.00 | $ 5,760.00 | $ 4,500.00 | $ 18,000.00 | $ 3,850.00 | $ 15,400.00 | $ 3,000.00 |$ 12,000.00
Hooded Drainage Inlet EA 2 $ 1,440.00 | $ 2,880.00 | $ 5,500.00 | $ 11,000.00 | $ 5,750.00 |$ 11,500.00 | $ 4,000.00 |$ 8,000.00
Modified Single Wing Top EA 1 $ 720.00 | $ 720.00 | $ 3,500.00 | $ 3,500.00 | $ 2,500.00 | $ 2,500.00 | $ 2,000.00 |$ 2,000.00
Solid Top w/Manhole Ring & Cover for EA 1 $ 720.00 | $ 720.00 | $ 6,000.00 | $ 6,000.00 | $ 3,500.00 | $ 3,500.00 | $ 600.00 |$ 600.00
Junction Box
Inlet Top for Junction Box EA 2 $ 720.00 | $ 1,440.00 | $ 2,500.00 | $ 5,000.00 | $ 2,500.00 |$ 5,000.00 | $ 600.00 | $ 1,200.00
Relocate Mailbox EA 6 $ 120.00 | $ 720.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 350.00 | $ 2,100.00 | $ 100.00 | $ 600.00
Tifway 419 Hybrid Bermuda Sod SY 80 $ 16.00 | $ 1,280.00 | $ 25.00 | $ 2,000.00 | $ 15.00 | $ 1,200.00 | $ 10.00 | $ 800.00
Retaining Wall LF 50 $ 300.00 | $ 15,000.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 25,000.00 | $ 150.00 | $ 7,500.00 | $ 100.00 | $ 5,000.00
Concrete Driveway Replacement LS 1 $ 3,019.00 | $ 3,019.00 | $ 4,000.00 | $ 4,000.00 | $ 3,500.00 | $ 3,500.00 | $ 1,500.00 |$ 1,500.00
Type 1 Handrail, 42" Height LF 50 $ 60.00 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 150.00 | $ 7,500.00 | $ 175.00 | $ 8,750.00 | $ 140.00 | $ 7,000.00
Stop Ahead Sign EA 2 $ 643.00 | $ 1,286.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 500.00 |$ 1,000.00 | $ 200.00 | $ 400.00
Stop Sign EA 1 $ 943.00 | $ 943.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 750.00 | $ 750.00 | $ 200.00 | $ 200.00
Flashing Beacon for Midblock Crossing EA 2 $ 7,850.00 | $ 15,700.00 |$ 10,000.00 | $ 20,000.00 | $ 6,950.00 | $ 13,900.00 | $ 4,000.00 |$ 8,000.00
Concrete Curb 6"-12" Height LF 10 $ 106.00 | $ 1,060.00 | $ 150.00 | $ 1,500.00 | $ 100.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 20.00 | $ 200.00
Mobilization (Not-to-Exceed 8% of Contract  |LS 1 $ 12,227.00 | $ 12,227.00 | $ 10,000.00 | $ 10,000.00 | $ 11,800.00 | $ 11,800.00 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 3,000.00
Amount)
Insurance and Contract Bonding (Not-to- LS 1 $ 4,179.00 | $ 4,179.00 | $ 4,000.00 | $ 4,000.00 | $ 4,500.00 |$ 4,500.00 | $ 2,500.00 | $ 2,500.00
Exceed 3% of Contract Amount)
Construction Staking LS 1 $ - $ - $ - -
Total Bid Price $ 155,724.00 $ 215,050.00 $ 166,320.00 $ 125,095.00
Bid Bond? yes X no Xyes no Xyes no Xyes no
Contractor's License Number? yes X no X yes no X yes no X yes no




RESOLUTION NUMBER 5113

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA

HILLS TO ADDRESS CERTAIN CAHABA BEACH ROAD EXTENSION

ALTERNATIVES BEING CONSIDERED BY THE ALABAMA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Transportation (“ALDOT”) commenced
planning efforts for consideration of a transportation project reopening, extending and/or
realigning Cahaba Beach Road to be located in Shelby and Jefferson County adjacent to the City
of Vestavia Hills (“City”) corporate limits; and

WHEREAS, several different roadway alignment options have been publicly considered
and referenced in a document included as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this
Resolution Number 5113 as though written fully therein; and

WHEREAS, the roadway alignment options referenced as Option 5 and Option 5B are
included and illustrated in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Options 5 and Option 5B represent a significant risk of additional traffic flow
being directed through residential and institutional zones along Liberty Parkway creating public
safety concerns and a risk of property value reductions; and

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the risk of environmental degradation along these and
other Options detailed in Exhibit A and located within this corridor;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA to adopt the following official position
regarding the Cahaba Beach Road transportation project:

A. Due to the risks associated with increased traffic flow being redirected to Liberty Parkway
with no mitigation of such effects being proposed, the City recommends that ALDOT
remove road alignment labeled as Option 5 and Option 5B from consideration in their
planning of the Cahaba Beach Road project; and

B. While the City continues to be concerned about other potential routes proposed by
ALDOT, it remains open to consider a positive recommendation of other road re-alignment
alternatives in the study area if traffic analyses provide objective information to show
benefits to the City of another alternative and sufficient mitigation of environmental and

public safety concerns associated with the project; and



C.

As the City receives further alternative-specific traffic or environmental reports, its Mayor
and City Council will review the information and offer further position statements
regarding this project; and

This Resolution Number 5113 shall be attested by the City Clerk and a copy filed with
ALDOT; and

This Resolution Number 5113 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and
approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor

ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk

SEAL



INZZ
_ 3 7 \ %ﬂg \
P - ey d ) 2 4y FEre . o, m.._ P 1 147 . 3. :
AN ' Ehe O ' ST wriil . . \ Z .
o (s e m\7 A\ ] 2 e B * ; = Bl 4 w..um.;wmmwsowtw : ; ) \ /uw
i - 3 o S o\ S Y o N/ (/7%
BoNopd g 7 g - R R\ T s e o
Acw \_\V\:w 7 o J @ & O . N@ 3 Q ¢
. . i i 8 nm o % By ' : /A ,/ p: .
M oo = . TR W & 3
iy mwﬂ. '™ paumo amma [///) Ll . i,l.%\ gsv\,\faar. LR AN .W } RRRARERRD EM K & ..o%
F Bl e ¢y 4 R =G o L Ny N ,,,, XL 3
.5 \mmxp“ ’ ..‘ B o6plg pasodod e .,“ £ R & T ). ,, m \o‘o“ ¢
A o RS RPN G T N o \ Y
5 > o - SRR Vo e 2 b/ N NN N\ ) 99 e 4 4 o
WL =] ¥ aAneUIRY ,r% P Y .3 cw\@\v % a.mw IIII ,,,, ,,,, ,,,, ““ R NN mw h.v
S e : 0% 7 o8N Ry WP o 1 ; /S IIIII ! 7 \ 1 e \...f
8 £ o bt 2 V2 eAneuIslY . ,..& £y o \_\vr. L of M'. 9 ...woa IIIIIII ,,,, 7/,,,, 4
ki L E) L | TN L i~ i NS N\ \ DAY Yk s
J-_ﬁ.h KL E pusba7 § %._zﬂwwozimi __\_,ossfx . Gt ¥ Iilf% NGSUTanY, ,,, ” \ ‘“v\ \\\\}7 / _.
iy 5 D TR et al Q NN \ A ;
WY LY o A\ oy, JNOLRe £ TR R NN NS DN 7
ﬁJM. P i RS EDNE! VS wr,&i@ 4 ¥ I//Il# \ ,,,,/,,, ;:.,:;j//,,,,,,, !
Bhasy 4 2 e 7 PP k! Illllll# ,,,,/7,,,, YOS N J \ \
gy Y B rul'y . LA NN SN
e 3 i 5 v 4 & Y Il/#l# ,,,/Z 9153 // SEEENAR V2 aAITeulaly \
<Y & sem\/ﬁ.\!..... SRR . ¢ R ¥ /II'% ,,,, ” /rr, \ R \ \
- % A . A NN
L - Y TN R \ \ /| 74 &
7 ) R L * 4} . NN Il.v/ NN ) %\\\
7 5% o R Iﬁllil N { N Z \\\5\ i
AN N\ ¢ &
N /% NN N PO Z 2
\ A NV OYANYY BYHY DS NN GO : \
&Y X "' \ ” ¥ SAIRUIB)Y Y 77, % % £
3 Vo G OATRUIBIY NN v/\\\\\\\\\\AY 77 | 7 , ) 5
L {/ 4 \ ,, ,, N \ ; 1 . g
b 7N\ // = 1 ., .
47 % M Y . »
‘ N 1% u 2 27

.
<




RESOLUTION NUMBER 5114

APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE
VESTAVIA HILLS LIBRARY BOARD

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:
WHEREAS,

City of Vestavia Hills Library Board; and

is hereby appointed as a member of the

WHEREAS, the said appointment shall be effective January 1, 2019 and shall
expire December 31, 2022.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 10" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry

Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5115

APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE
VESTAVIA HILLS LIBRARY BOARD

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:
WHEREAS,

City of Vestavia Hills Library Board; and

is hereby appointed as a member of the

WHEREAS, the said appointment shall be effective January 1, 2019 and shall
expire December 31, 2022.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 10" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry

Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5116

APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE VESTAVIA HILLS
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:
WHEREAS, is hereby appointed as a member of the

City of Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board; and

WHEREAS, the appointment shall be effective January 1, 2019, and shall expire
December 31, 2023.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 10" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Resolution Number 5118
Page 1

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5118

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO REPLACE

AN EMERGENCY POWER GENERATOR WHICH SERVES THE

VESTAVIA HILLS JAMES F. WYATT FIRE STATION NUMBER 5 AND

THE CAHABA HEIGHTS POLICE SUBSTATION AND TO DECLARE

SAID REPLACEMENT AS AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, a fuel line failure caused a fire and subsequently heavily damaged an
emergency power generator that serves the Vestavia Hills James F. Wyatt Fire Station Number 5
and the Cahaba Heights Police Substation; and

WHEREAS, the unit has been declared to be a total loss and is required to be replaced,;
and

WHEREAS, the need for electrical power for said facility is essential for emergency
responders and emergency rescue equipment all of which are housed in said facility thus creating
an emergency replacement situation; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree that it is in the best public interest to
declare such replacement as an emergency purchase and to authorize the City Manager to order a
replacement of said emergency power generator as soon as possible.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS:

1. Replacement of the emergency power generator which serves Vestavia Hills James F.
Wyatt Fire Station Number 5 and the Cahaba Heights Police Station is hereby declared as
an emergency repair; and

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to replace said generator at a cost not to exceed
$18,000; and

3. This Resolution Number 5118 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and
approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor



Resolution Number 5118
Page 2

ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Exhibit - Resolution Number 5118

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Jetf Downes

FROM: Marvin Green
DATE: December 5, 2018
RE: Emergency Purchase

On November 27, 2018, the emergency power generator that serves the Vestavia Hills James F.
Wryatt Fire Station Number 5 and the Cahaba Heights Police Substation experienced a fuel line
failure, caught fire and subsequently, was heavily damaged. The unit is 18 years old and is obsolete
rendering it unrepairable due to the age of equipment and lack of parts.

We are requesting an emergency purchase due to the need of our critical infrastructure to have
reliable back up power in the event of inclement weather or power failure. The Vestavia Hills James
F. Wyatt Fire Station Number 5 houses our Heavy Rescue equipment and serves as the secondary

emergency operations center for the City.

The cost to replace and install the generator is as follows:

35KW Briggs & Stratton Fortress Generator Model #076830
Advanced Generator Technologies, LLC $15,880.00

Electrical Equipment Upgrades and Installation
Mark Gibbs $1,200.00

The $17,080 cost will come from the General Fund Budget.

Serving Since 1951



Ordinance Number 2810
Page 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2810

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985,
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 TO
VESTAVIA HILLS O-1

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama,
as follows: That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills,
Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of
district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density
residential district) to Vestavia Hills O-1 (office park district):

4517 Pine Tree Circle;
Mark Hancock, Owner(s)

More Particularly Described As Follows:

That part of the SW ¥4 of the SE ¥4 of Section 27, Township 18 South, Range
2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, more particular descried as
follows:

Begin at the SW corner of said 1/4-1/4 section and run thence Eastwardly
along the south line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 833.5 feet to the
point of beginning of tract here described; from point of beginning true
obtained continue eastwardly along south line for a distance of 100 feet;
thence turn an angle to the left of 90 degrees and run northwardly for a
distance of 250 feet; thence turn an angle to the left of 90 degrees and run
westwardly for a distance of 100 feet; thence turn an angle to the left of 90
degrees and run southwardly for a distance of 250 feet to the point of
beginning.

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 17"" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor



Ordinance Number 2810
Page 2

ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk

CERTIFICATION:

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2810 is a true and correct
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia
Hills on the 17" day of December, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said
City.

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the day of ,
2018.

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Ordinance Number 2810
Page 3

=
| B

(S

{4

FATCHWORK  FARMS U {

- I



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING
APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: NOVEMBER 8, 2018

o CASE: P-1118-42

e REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills O-1

e ADDRESS/LOCATION: 4517 Pine Tree Cir.

e APPLICANT/OWNER: Mark A. Hancock

e REPRESNTING AGENT:

e GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is on the southern end of Pine Tree Cir.
Applicant is seeking rezoning to build a two story office building (6,000 sq. ft. +/-).
The proposed building meets all requirements of an O-1 zoning, including parking
and buffering. The proposed architecture is similar to what was approved in the Blue
Lake area. A sidewalk will be constructed as required by the Blue Lake Area Study.
A proposed site plan, landscaping plan, and rendering is attached.

e CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the
Cahaba Heights Community Plan for limited mixed use and Blue Lake Area Study

e STAFFREVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: | have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. | have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation:
2. City Engineer Review: No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: | have reviewed the application and | have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: | have reviewed the application and | have no
issues with this request.



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810

MOTION Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 4517 Pine Tree
Cir. from Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills O-1. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion was carried
on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin — yes Mr. Sykes — yes
Mr. Romeo — yes Ms. Cobb — yes
Mr. House — yes Mr. Larson — yes

Mrs. Barnes — yes
Motion carried.



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810

PINE TREE CIRCLE

8-0" FRONTAGE
TABLE 9.2.2

LANDSCAPING PER

o
i
1
o
w
o
2%
o
wa
[¥a)
nﬂ,uN
©3

TABLE 9.2.2

o
20'-0"
SETBACK

240"

1 Movalss
W0-.0€

MovaLs

40 -.0€|

10 SPACES
14 SPACES

46'-0"
FUTURE BUILDING
6,000 GSF (TWO
FLOORS @ 3,000 SF
EACH)

SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE
15'-0" LANDSCAPE
TABLE 9.3A

BUFFER PER TABLE 9.3A
10-0" LANDSCAPE

BUFFER & FENCE PER



Exhibit - Ordi e No. 2810




Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810

L-¥d-and

-]

£00Z/LE/ED

13:1.0)

L&

dI2 3341 INID LLSF
Z9

0z0

LODOEDLODY /2008

Bujuoz




Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2810

t ~
Future LLand Use Ze
Low Densiny Residenual B Rl Ml = IRLATEUEE =

It
11 = e —
Medormn-Densiny Resdenial L Pamired Mised Use Varks and Open Space e A
C Fheh-Denits Resdenal P vlancd Misel Use
-
= mogham [ etferwn County | Mountain Bowh )

N hute €324 Dr

e

L2 s

3
T

I
-'* At

g-";w .

Figure 4: Future Land Use Map

Page 14



Ordinance Number 2811
Page 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2811

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE
APPROVAL TO ALLOW OUTDOOR RECREATION AND
PHYSICAL TRAINING
WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills,
Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills Zoning
Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible by right
in zoning classifications; and
WHEREAS, on January 22, 2018, the City Council adopted and approved
Ordinance Number 2741 to rezone the property located at 2301 Old Columbiana Road
from Institutional to Vestavia Hills B-2, general business district for recreation and
physical fitness; and
WHEREAS, on August 20, 2018, Richard Pennino, owner of Forge Fitness,
submitted an application to allow outdoor recreation training such as jogging, running,
fitness, obstacle training, etc; on the property located at 2301 Old Columbiana Road and
WHEREAS, the property located at 2301 Old Columbiana Road, is presently
zoned Vestavia Hills B-2 (business district) with restrictions; and
WHEREAS, Table 6 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible
uses within a B-2 classification; and
WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated August 20, 2018 is attached and
hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2811; and
WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission considered said
application at their regular meeting of October 11, 2018 and recommended approval with
the following conditions: (1) No unreasonable outdoor noise in violation of the standards
set in the City’s noise ordinance, as amended, before 8 AM or after 9 PM, Monday through
Friday and before 9AM or after 5PM on Saturdays or anytime on Sunday; (2) outdoor
batting cages are prohibited on premise; (3) no amplified music outside of the building;
and (4) any changes to outdoor lighting to be approved by the Design Review Board.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:



Ordinance Number 2811
Page 2

Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Richard Pennino, Forge

Fitness, for use of the property located at 2301 Old Columbiana Road to allow

outdoor recreational and fitness activities including, but not limited to jogging,

running, fitness, obstacle training with the following conditions:

a)

b)

d)

No unreasonable outdoor noise in violation of the standards set in the
City’s noise ordinance, as amended, before 8 AM or after 9 PM,
Monday through Friday and before 9AM or after 5PM on Saturdays or
anytime on Sunday;

Outdoor batting cages are prohibited on premise; and

No amplified music outside of the building; and

Any changes to outdoor lighting to be approved by the Design Review
Board

This conditional use approval is location specific and if the outdoor
fitness use ceases on the premises for a period of 12 months, said

conditional use shall be considered null and void;

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 17" day of December, 2018.

ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings

City Clerk

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor



Ordinance Number 2811
Page 3

CERTIFICATION:

I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama,
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2811 is a true and
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of
Vestavia Hills on the 17" day of December, 2018 as same appears in the official records
of said City.

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest,
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the day of
, 2018.

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING
APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: OCTOBER 11, 2018

o CASE: P-1018-33

e REQUESTED _ACTION: Conditional Use Approval For  Outdoor
Recreation/Training Such as Jogging, Running, Fitness, & Obstacle Training

e ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2301 Old Columbiana Rd.

e APPLICANT/OWNER: Richard Pennino

e REPRESNTING AGENT:

e GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is currently the home of Forge Fitness, a
crossfit gym. The applicants have also included a list of possible activities and
proposed locations on site. Outdoor recreation is specifically listed as requiring
conditional use approval for B-2 zoning and the Commission may recommend
specific activities at their discretion.

e VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with
the Comprehensive Plan for Neighborhood (recreational areas).

e STAFFREVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: | have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. | have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: Rezoning conditioned on uses presented.
2. City Engineer Review: No problems noted.
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems notes.

4. Building Safety Review: | have reviewed the application and | have no
issues with this request.

MOTION  Mr. House made a motion to recommend Conditional Use approval for Outdoor
Recreation for 2301 Old Columbiana Rd. with the following conditions:



2.
3.
4.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811

No outdoor noise before 8AM and 9PM, M-F;
before 9AM and after 5PM, Sat

Batting cages are prohibited

No amplified music outside of building

Any changes to outdoor lighting to be approved by
DRB.

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin — yes
Mr. Romeo - yes
Mr. House — yes
Mrs. Barnes — yes
Motion carried.

Mr. Sykes — yes
Ms. Cobb — yes
Mr. Larson — yes



Odﬁ‘ l \ ‘b‘ Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811
p Q‘ ! P&Z Application
Page 4

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

APPLICATION

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
I.__INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:

(1)  The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularly on the
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at the
Municipal Center.

(2)  All matenals and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working days prior to the
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered.
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it
is to be considered.

(3)  This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes.

(4)  All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered
complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which
will be billed to applicant at a later date. **No permits will be issued until all fees
have been paid.

(5)  Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this
application. Please refer to attached checklist.

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property)

name:  Richad @mnlno

aporess: 2200 O\ (olunbiuna Koo d
6r‘m‘mi\)ha”),, AL D52

MAILING ADDRESS (ifdifferent from above)  _ 15 Mivdeds (Woeds G
Bireviadn, Do 3520

PHONE NUMBER: Ho\rge @;70 Y2 2-51%  offce

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT:

Frenc,c\ NCMfl Iav\




Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811

P&Z Application
Page 5
II. ACTION REQUESTED
Request that the above described property be approved conditional use approval pursuant
to Section of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code.
Current Zoning of Property: Q))
Requested Conditional use For the intended purpose of: On—\ &OD\" Cc '"'—'&J(i LN
< M sudh a5 \ogg "y, Yuanine -Dl4ness , Obsgm.(e JWQE*'\M
(Example: From “VH R-1" to “VHO-1"* for elfice building)”" ' 3
*¥f additional information is needed, please attached full description of request** 5C< {‘H{J-, ej
IV.  PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: (address, legal, etc.)
’FQ fove [\:T'{Wcﬂs S
Q%Jl O{d C_o(on\ Oyt \Qoo\y(
Property size: 4 feet X feet. Acres:
V. INFORMATION ATTACHED:
Attached Checklist complete with all required information.
Application fees submitted.
VI. I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that [, the owner, and/or my duly

K

appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing.

Owner Signature/Date Representing Agent (if any)/date

Given under my hand and seal

this 2.0 dayof Aunjvg‘)’ 20/8 .

y Commission Expires

My commisSion expires November & 7020

day of

, 20




Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811

Running track: We will be running around our building and around other parts of the building for
exercise and other types of sports specific training, i.e. tossing football or baseball. We will also
continue to use the running track that is on the property.

Weight training: We will be lifting weights outside with barbells, dumbbells, or kettle bells.
Batting Cage: We may decide on a batting cage for hitting baseball or other type of outside

sports.
Adult Play Ground: We will have an outdoor obstacle course with rope climbs, monkey bar, sand

pit, wal! for climbing over, wall traverse, etc...



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811

TR s
| il

L

[li |

iii i 1f i

Eal

ISie

Ei 'l !E

i il .

i i

GYOH YNVISWNI0D a10

¢ o— -~
"—‘-—_.u—n.n—

e
;

yoen Buuuny

ru—lp—ir—!l—|.

Lo

8joB}Sq0
pue }id pueg

TRE T TR M,
aal X L A

ET

sabesn bumeqg

_-"?rf—-
T

-

— L L L

i FCRGE FITNESS
Im ilg g CLD COLLMANA ROAD Re V\ta
- = E £ VESTAVIA HILLS, AL e
8la s




Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811




Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2811

e
/ beautifitation |+

Figure 20: Columbiana Road
Land Use Analysis

Neighborhood - rily bow * mendi single-family reshlerrlal Professional Offices - mi ok | uffies usce. Dty shauld

lnn‘wuh hhhnnlm':‘::a Lrwm nm::‘nzn':'ludc vary acconding mmnwm!'lmﬂdmummlumimk rrail and ::ndrﬂ

scheols, places of worship, recreanional areas, sndd open space. faupporting uifices snd rmployeny), plices of wonhip, public spaces, sod open spses. N
D Villape Center - mised use centers with highen denaities In core aress Recreation and Open Space and privas recrestion facilicies snd

Mix o uses thould include rersil aned service tnulnesses, professional offices, P preserved natural spaces. Recreation facihieies may be setive. pasitve or combined. Open -

high densiry resulensial aress, mstirurions, recrestion arcas, and public spaes. +paces air aress [reserved in o natural waie and may include pasive recneational uses. w E

Commercial Core ,}vmmnh bigh denasry, recall and service bunnea
areas wich profesionsl nifices and mulifamily residencet un wpper footrs o

: @' Trailiveads - Teaithends are public sites shung » rail, where Dike racks, seating. s
on peniphery. Other uses may inchude inucirurions and public space.

parking, and public smenitses are provicdid for irasl users.

. Schools - Schoul facilites miminissrared by the Visceva Hills Schosol Syastem,
0 [ O IO 1500 4m

Gﬂl’f.’\\'ﬂ}l and Nodes - Gatewan are crtryways into the community or
willage l:u.ln:':l‘:h i sigmagr, | .Nl'tl e caher |.-l|-:.l|rm-;.u
Nondes are 3 = rranukt sops, whery spacs, signagy. and other
public design clemenns thould be mnndm\lim

Vestavia Hills Comprebensive Plan



Ordinance Number 2812
Page 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2812

AN ORDINANCE TO PARTNER WITH THE COACHSAFELY
FOUNDATION PURSUANT TO THE COACH SAFETY ACT, ALSO
KNOWN AS ACT NUMBER 2018-496 AS ADOPTED BY THE
ALABAMA LEGISLATURE, 2018 REGULAR SESSION AND
AUTHORIZING A PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN THE COACHSAFELY
FOUNDATION AND THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS PARKS AND
RECREATION DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the Alabama Legislature in its 2018 Regular Session passedAct # 2018-
496, “The Coach Safety Act”, which is applicable to persons participating in youth athletic

activities sponsored by the City Parks and Recreation Department; and

WHEREAS, the Coach Safety Act requires all persons serving as coaches for youth
athletic activities to complete an online or residence course which provides such persons with
information and awareness of actions and measures which may be used to decrease the
likelihood that a youth athlete will sustain a serious injury and/or that the same will be treated

improperly; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills has been made aware of
and presented with an opportunity to partner with the CoachSafely Foundation to raise
awareness of youth athletic safety, provide for no-cost training of local coaches for Vestavia
Hills Parks and Recreation teams and activities, and enhance the overall youth athletic

experience;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT THEREFORE ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR
AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS AS FOLLOWS:

1) The City of Vestavia Hills and its Parks and Recreation Department will enter into a
partnership with the CoachSafely Foundation to provide that mandatory training required
by the Coach Safety Act, and to promote awareness of youth athletic safety and enhance
the youth athletic experience in the City of Vestavia Hills; and

2 The Mayor and City Manager are authorized to execute and deliver a Memorandum of

Understanding with the CoachSafely Foundation to memorialize this Ordinance, and the



Ordinance Number 2812
Page 2

clearly define the duties of the City and the Foundation, which a copy of said Memorandum
is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2812;

and

3 This Ordinance Number 2812 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

publishing/posting as required by Alabama law.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 17" day of December,
2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2812

STATE OF ALABAMA COUNTY OF )
) MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
JEFFERSON COUNTY )

COME NOW, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation organized
under the laws of the State of Alabama, and the CoachSafely Foundation, an Alabama nonprofit
corporation, and set forth and show their mutual agreement, as follows:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Alabama Legislature has passed in its 2018 Regular Session Act#2018-496,
known as “The Coach Safety Act”, which is applicable to persons participating in youth athletic
activities sponsored by the City of Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Department; and

WHEREAS, the Coach Safety Act requires all persons serving as coaches for youth
athletic activities to complete and online or residence course which provides such persons with
information and awareness of actions and measures which may be used to decrease the
likelihood that a youth athlete will sustain a serious injury and/or that the same will be treated
improperly; and

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills and the CoachSafely Foundation desire to
combine and jointly endeavor to raise awareness of youth athletic safety, provide for no-cost
training of local coaches for Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation teams and activities, and
enhance the overall youth athletic experience;

SHARED MUTUAL UNDERSTANDING AND AGREEMENTS:
l. CO-MARKETING RELATIONSHIP

A The CoachSafely Foundation, hereinafter referred to as “the Foundation”,
will provide a course in coaching education which will be offered at no cost
and which meets or exceeds the requirements of Act 2018-496, the “Coach
Safety Act”, to the City of Vestavia Hills, hereinafter referred to as
“the City”. In consideration and exchange for this no-cost service, the City
will provide 1) promotional access to raise the awareness of the
preventable nature of youth sports injuries and 2) access to specialized
care. The parties desire to work cooperatively, but independently, to
promote the cause of youth sports injury prevention to the citizens of the
City and area. This MOU describes the terms of a nonexclusive,
cooperative marketing relationship under which each party will
independently or cooperatively engage in mutually agreed activities to
promote each other’s community service missions.

b) Relationship of the Parties. This MOU shall not create any agency, legal
partnership, joint venture, or any other form of legal association, and neither
party may represent itself as an agent, legal partner, or joint venture of the

Page 1 of 5



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2812

other or otherwise incur any obligation or liability on behalf of the other
party. Neither party may resell, quote prices or fees, or otherwise negotiate
business terms for the other party’s products or services unless otherwise
agreed to between the parties as terms of this memo understanding.

1. TERMS

The terms of this Memorandum of Understanding, as mutually agreed to by both parties are;

1. Course Delivery Agreement

a)

b)

c)

d)

The CoachSafely online course shall be the preferred delivery method.
When the online course is not feasible, CoachSafely can arrange a live on-
site Blended Learning seminar.

The Blended Learning seminar will be moderated by a mutually approved
certified athletic trainer that has been approved by the CoachSafely
Foundation.

Per the Coach Safety Act, the city will designate and assign personnel to
submit a complete Registry of Coaches prior to each and every sports
season for the purpose of educating, testing and validation of course
completion.

For purpose of a live seminar, a designated and assigned city administrator
will establish submit and coordinate an Itinerary to be distributed to
coaches of sports for aged 14 and under. The itinerary will contain the
following information; date, time and classroom location for the class to be
taught, allowing for 2 hours of actual class time with breaks.

2. Publicity/Awareness Agreement

a)

b)

c)
d)

It is agreed that the City will produce a Press Release and other means of
print and electronic media publicity that raises the awareness of the Coach
Safety Act and it is agreed that CoachSafely will use its means of generating
publicity to promote the initiative of the City.

Both parties agree to share access (with content) for Social Media
engagement for their shared mission.

CoachSafely agrees to assist in providing personal endorsements for the
purpose of promotion.

CoachSafely encourages the municipality to use all of the material resources
available at www.stopsportsinjuries.org (a CoachSafely collaborator).

3. Promotion/Advertising Agreement

a)
b)

Both parties agree to the Use of each other’s Logos in their promotions.

The City agrees to allow advertising of the CoachSafely initiative by posting
one (1) Sports Safety and Care Awareness Banner at each and every venue
where there is youth sports activity. Advertising on said sign will be limited
to these four (4) types of logos or trademarks: i) Children’s of Alabama; ii)

Page 2 of 5



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2812

CoachSafely; and iii) Sponsoring local sports medicine care providers; iv) A
CoachSafely approved state or national sponsor. Upon request,
CoachSafely can email ‘proofs’ of said banners prior to sports venue
installation.

C) The Territory for this Agreement is the area within the City limits and
subject to the City’s control.

d) The City agrees to CoachSafely representing to other municipalities or others
that this agreement constitutes a Referral.

Other Agreements

Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither party shall be obligated to enter into any
agreement with any other party, but the parties will negotiate in good faith for their
common mission and will not act in a manner intended to interfere with the
cooperative purposes of the aforementioned (3) agreements.

GRANTS, GIFTS AND SPONSORSHIP ACTIVITIES

a)

b)

d)

CoachSafely will support all grant proposals by the City that support their
common mission.

The City understands that Coach Safely, which is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit,
relies on and uses public funding to offset the expense of providing a no-
cost course and therefore will use its best efforts to enter into an independent
sponsorship agreement with a local sports medicine care provider that
Coach Safely deems to be accessible for specialty care to the community.

CoachSafely will provide full disclosure of any and all sponsorship
agreements.

The City accepts that CoachSafely is a charitable organization and that it will
cultivate and solicit gifts and grants through its contacts in the City and
elsewhere.

AMENDMENT, PERPETUAL RENEWAL AND TRANSFERABILITY

a)

b)

d)

With written notice by either party to amend the terms or conditions of their
mutual understanding, both parties agree to a good faith effort for a
resolution.

This agreement fulfilled in good faith is and will be perpetually renewed,;
provided, that either party shall have the right to terminate this Memorandum
of Understanding upon the giving of ninety (90) days’ notice to the other.

The obligations of this understanding of both parties are not transferrable
without the consent of both parties.

This Memorandum of Understanding contains the entire understanding of the
parties, and neither party shall have any obligation to the other or to any third
party which is not listed and set out hereinabove.

Page 3of 5



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2812

WHEREUNTO, the parties have set their hands and seals onthis the day of
, 2018.
COACHSAFELY FOUNDATION CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA
By: By:
Kanti Sunkavalli, CEO CoachSafely
Foundation Its:  Mayor
By:

Its: City Manager

STATE OF ALABAMA)
COUNTY OFJEFFERSON COUNTY)

I, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify that
Ashley C. Curry, Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, whose name is signed to the
foregoing Memorandum of Understanding, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on
this day, that, being informed of the contents thereof, he executed the same with all due authority
and as the free and voluntary act of said municipal corporation on the day the same bears date.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal, on this the day of , 2018.
Notary Public (SEAL)
MCE:

Page 4 of 5



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2812

STATE OF ALABAMA)
COUNTY OFJEFFERSON COUNTY)

I, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify that
Jeffrey Downes, City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, whose name is signed to
the foregoing Memorandum of Understanding, and who is known to me, acknowledged before
me on this day, that, being informed of the contents thereof, he executed the same with all due
authority and as the free and voluntary act of said municipal corporation on the day the same
bears date.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal, on this the day of , 2018.
Notary Public (SEAL)
MCE:
STATE OF ALABAMA )
) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF )

I, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify that
Kanti Sunkavalli, the CEO of the CoachSafely Foundation, whose name is signed to the
foregoing Memorandum of Understanding, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on
this day, that, being informed of the contents thereof, he executed the same with all due authority and
as the free and voluntary act of said nonprofit corporation on the day the same bears date.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal, on this the day of , 2018.
Notary Public (SEAL)
MCE:

Page 5 of 5



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2812

2018 PARK BOARD COACH SAFETY ACT POLICY

In compliance with the Alabama Coach Safety Act recently passed by the Alabama legislature, all athletic
personnel of youth athletics in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama shall successfully complete The
CoachSafely course on a yearly basis prior to being eligible to participate in any practice or athletic event
for that particular youth sport. In order to effectuate compliance with the Alabama Coach Safety Act,
the following is required on a yearly basis:

(1) The President of each Youth Sports Board that falls within the umbrella of the Vestavia Hills
Parks and Recreation Department, or the head coach of any team that intends to use any field,
facility or property owned by the City of Vestavia Hills or managed by the Vestavia Hills Parks
and Recreation Board, shall provide a list of all “athletic personnel” to the Vestavia Hills Parks
and Recreation Superintendent along with appropriate documentation demonstrating that each
person on that list has successfully completed the CoachSafely course;

(2) The term “athletic personnel” includes all compensated or non-compensated coaches or other
youth sports personnel who intend to provide any on-the-field training, instruction, coaching or
supervision of youth athletics;

(3) The Superintendent shall keep a record of each person who has completed the CoachSafely
course for that year. Any team whose entire “athletic personnel” have not completed the
CoachSafely course will, after consultation with the Park Board, have its permission to use the
City of Vestavia Hills’ fields or facilities revoked and terminated.

Adopted by Park Board on 11-20-18



Ordinance Number 2813
.Page 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2813

AN ORDINANCE TO RESCIND ORDINANCE NUMBER 2627 AND

ARTICLE XI, SECTION 8-281 THRU 8-293 OF THE VESTAVIA HILLS

CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO LICENSES AND

REGULATION OF TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES

(“TNC”)

WHEREAS, on December 28, 2015, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills adopted
and approved Ordinance Number 2627 to establish a NAICS Code, operating standards and
definitions for a Transportation Network Company or TNC operating within the City of Vestavia
Hills, Alabama; and

WHEREAS, following the regular 2018 Regular Alabama Legislative Session, Act
Number 2018-127 was enacted to regulate Transportation Network Companies (“TNC”)
throughout the state; to collect certain revenues and allocate said revenues for disbursement
throughout the State of Alabama; and

WHEREAS, Act Number 2018-128 preempted any City regulated Ordinances pertaining
to TNC’s; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that Ordinance Number 2627 and
Article IX, Section 8-281 thru 8-293 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances be rescinded in its
entirety; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined it is in the best public interest
to rescind Ordinance Number 2627 and Article 1X, Section 8-281 thru 8-293 of the Vestavia Hills
Code of Ordinances.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:

1. Ordinance Number 2627 and Article IX, Section 8-281 thru 8-293 of the Vestavia Hills

Code of Ordinances are hereby rescinded it its entirety; and

2. This Ordinance Number shall become effective immediately upon adoption, approval and

posting/publishing as required by Alabama law.



Ordinance Number 2813
.Page 2

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 17"" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk

CERTIFICATION:

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance #2813 is a true and correct copy of such
Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 17" day
of December 2018 as same appears in the official records of said City.

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the day of
, 2018.

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2814

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT REGULATIONS FOR SMALL CELL
TECHNOLOGY FACILITIES IN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS,
ALABAMA

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama seeks to facilitate
the availability of reliable, personal wireless communication services for its citizens and the public
by permitting the placement of Small Cell Technology Facilities and associated Support Structures
along the Rights-Of-Way and on private properties in the City; and

WHEREAS, the installation, expansion, and maintenance of Small Cell Technology
Facilities and associated Structures on or along the Rights-Of-Way and on private properties might
have significant impact upon: (1) the aesthetic values and historical character of the City; (2) safe
use and passage on or along the Rights-of-Way by the public; and (3) properties and property
values in the City in areas where such Structures are placed; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the “Act”) and regulations
promulgated with respect to the Act by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC)
authorize local governments to enact responsible regulations for the placement, expansion, height,
and maintenance of Small Cell Technologies Facilities and associated Support Structures; and

WHEREAS, as provided in this Ordinance Number 2814, the City seeks to mandate,
where feasible, the colocation of Small Cell Technology Facilities on existing poles and other
Support Structures as opposed to installation of new Structures; and

WHEREAS, the above-noted colocation and other provisions of this Ordinance are
intended to be consistent with the Act and its associated regulation; and

WHEREAS, the adoption of the regulations, procedures, and requirements in this
Ordinance will permit Applicants and Providers to enhance the provision of personal wireless
service and protect the public welfare, health, safety and interests of the City’s citizens.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS:

Chapter 16.5 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances entitled “Telecommunications” is
hereby amended as Ordinance Number 2814 is hereby adopted and shall be inserted in the Vestavia
Hills Municipal Code as follows:

ARTICLE I1l. SMALL CELL TECHNOLOGY FACILITIES

Section 1. Definitions.

The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation of this Ordinance:

A. Abandonment or Abandons means that, following the placement of Small Cell
Technologies Facilities (and associated Accessory Equipment) or Support Structures
in the City pursuant to a permit issued to a Provider or an Applicant, any of the
following has occurred: (a) for any reason the Facilities cease to be used to transmit
signals, data, or messages or otherwise be used for their intended purposes for a period
of ninety (90) days; (b) the City revokes the permit for placement and use of those
Facilities due to nonpayment of applicable fees, the failure of the Provider or Applicant



Iom

<r

Ordinance Number 2814
Page 2

to comply with conditions in the permit or in this Ordinance concerning them, or other
valid reason; or (c) the Provider or Applicant fails to perform any of its responsibilities,
obligations and requirements in this ordinance or in a permit that relate to the
installation, construction, maintenance, use or operation of the Facilities, Accessory
Equipment or Support Structures, and that breach remains uncured for a period of sixty
(60) days after the City provides written notice of the breach to the Provider or
Applicant.

Accessory Equipment means any equipment other than an antenna that is used in
conjunction with Small Cell Technology Facility arrangements. This equipment may
be attached to or detached from a Small Cell Technology Wireless Support Structure,
and in includes, but is not limited to, cabinets, optical converters, power amplifiers,
radios, DWDM and CWDM multiplexers, microcells, radio units, fiber optic and
coaxial cables, wires, meters, pedestals, power switches, and related equipment on or
in the immediate vicinity of a Support Structure.

. Antenna means communications equipment that transmits and receives electromagnetic

radio signals, is attached to a Small Cell Technology Wireless Support Structure and is
used to communicate wireless service.

Applicant, whether singular or plural, means a personal wireless service provider, an
entity that is authorized by a personal wireless service provider to apply for or receive
a permit to install, construct, modify or maintain a Small Cell Technology Facility and
related Accessory Equipment or Support Structure in the City, or an entity certificated
by the Alabama Public Service Commission to provide telecommunication service.
Application means a formal request submitted to the City for a permit to install,
construct, modify or maintain a Small Cell Technology Facility and related Accessory
Equipment or Support Structure.

City means the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.

City Council means the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.

City Manager means the person appointed by the City Council as the City Manager of
the City. The City Manager includes any employee of the City or other person
designated by that Manager to perform the responsibilities of this Ordinance.
Colocation means the placement or installation of a new Small Cell Wireless
Technology Facility or related Accessory Equipment on an existing pole or other
Support Structure that is owned, controlled or leased by a utility, the City or other
person or entity.

Personal Wireless Service Provider or Provider means an entity that provides personal
wireless communication services to the public or citizens of the City on a commercial
basis and is authorized by the FCC to provide those services.

Private Property means real property located within the corporate limits of the City
that does not lie within the Right-of-Way.

Provider — see Personal Wireless Service Provider.

. Right-Of-Way or Rights-Of-Way, whether singular or plural, means the surface and

space in, upon, above, along, across, over and below any public streets, avenues,
highways, roads, courts, lanes, alleys, boulevards, ways, sidewalks and bicycle lanes,
including all public utility easements and public service easements within those places,
as the same now or may hereafter exist, that are within the City’s corporate boundaries
and under the jurisdiction of the City. This term shall not include county, state, or



Section 2.

Ordinance Number 2814
Page 3

federal Rights-of-Way or any property owned by any person or entity other than the
City.

Small Cell Technology Facility(ies) or Facilities, whether singular or plural, means and
includes the following types of Structures: (a) antenna; and (b) associated Accessory
Equipment. Photographs and illustrations of the types, relative dimensions and scale
of these Facilities that are currently contemplated by this ordinance are attached as
Exhibit A to the permanent record of this ordinance that is maintained by the City Clerk.
Small Cell Technology Wireless Support Structure, Support Structure or Structure,
whether singular or plural, means a freestanding structure designed or used to support,
or capable of supporting, Small Cell Technology Facilities, including, but not limited
to, utility poles, street light poles, traffic signal structures, rooftops, attics, or other
enclosed or open areas of a building or accessory structure, a sign, or a flag pole. These
terms do not include any decorative and architecturally significant street light poles that
are inappropriate for use as a Support Structure as determined by the City Manager.
Stealth Technology means one or more methods of concealing or minimizing the visual
impact of a Small Cell Technology Facility (and associated Accessory Equipment) and
Support Structure by incorporating features or design elements which either totally or
partially conceal such Facilities or Equipment. The use of these design elements is
intended to produce the result of having said Facilities and associated Structures blend
into the surrounding environment and/or disguise, shield, hide or create the appearance
that the Facilities architectural component of the Support Structure. Photographs and
illustrations of examples of the types of Stealth Technology that may be used when
buildings are utilized as Support Structures and other applications of Stealth
Technology that are currently contemplated are attached as Exhibit B to the permanent
record of the ordnance that is maintained by the City Clerk.

Permit Required to Place Small Cell Technology Facilities in Rights-Of-Way.

A

Provider or Applicant must obtain a permit from the City before placing, installing, or
constructing any Small Cell Technology Facility (and associated Accessory
Equipment) on any Support Structure that is located on the Right-Of-Way, or
substantially modifying the position or characteristics of any such existing Facility
thereon.

. The City Manager will review and administratively process any request for a permit to

determine whether, in the exercise of the City Manger’s reasonable discretion, it should
be issued for the location and in the manner requested by the Applicant. In this process,
the burden is on the Provider or Applicant to demonstrate that the placement of the
proposed Small Cell Technology Facility and associated Accessory equipment or
Support Structure on the Right-of-Way is the minimal physical installation which will
achieve the goal of enhancing the provision of personal wireless service when
considering all pertinent factors discussed in the provision immediately below. Except
as set forth in this section this permitting process will be administrative and not require
the approval of any City Board or City Official other than the City Manager. The
factors, requirements and guidelines that the City Manager may consider and will apply
when determining whether to issue a permit for placement of Small Cell Technology



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 4

Facilities and associated Structure on the Right-Of-Way include, but are not limited to,
the following:

1.

2.

3.

the demonstrated need for placing the Structures at the requested location and
geographic area in order to deliver or enhance personal wireless service;

the visual impact of placing the Support Structure or Facilities in the subject
area;

the character of the area in which the Structures are requested, including
surrounding buildings, properties, and uses;

whether the appearance and placement of the requested Structures is
aesthetically consistent with the immediate area;

whether the Structures are consistent with the historic nature and characteristics
of the requested location;

the Applicant’s or Provider’s network coverage objective and whether the
Applicant or Provider should use available or previously unconsidered
alternative locations to place the Support Structures or Facilities;

Colocation. To the extent practical, all Facilities and associated Accessory
Equipment that are placed in the City shall be attached to a pre-existing Support
Structure that is owned, controlled or leased by a utility, franchisee, the City or
other entity. If the Applicant demonstrates that no colocation opportunities
exist in the area where a technologically documented need for a Facility exists,
the Applicant may request that a new pole or other Support Structure be
installed in that area for purposes of constructing the Facilities. Before any new
Support Structure is permitted, each of the following must occur:

a. The Applicant must have provided the City written evidence that no
practical colocation opportunity exists. This evidence shall include, but
not be limited to, affidavits, correspondence, or other written
information that demonstrates that the Applicant has taken all
commercially reasonable actions to achieve colocation in the requested
location or area, that the Applicant has perused but been denied access
to all potential colocation sites in the subject area (and the reasons for
any such denial(s)), and otherwise show that the Applicant is unable to
co-locate on an existing Support Structure;

b. The City Manager must recommend the placement of a new Support
Structure in the Right-of-Way; and

c. The City Council must approve the recommendation of the City
Manager to issue a permit that includes the placement of a new Support
Structure in the Right-of-Way. The City Council will consider whether
to approve any such new Structures at a regular Council meeting that
will be conducted as soon as practical after the City Manager’s
recommendation is made.

If a Facility is attached to a utility pole or other Support Structure in the Right-
Of-Way, no antenna or other part of the Facility shall extend no more than five
(5) feet above the height of that structure; provided that, in the event that the
Applicant demonstrates that National Electric Safety Code regulations or other
factors create an undue hardship in complying with this height requirement, the



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 5

City Manager may permit a Facility to extend up to ten (10) feet above the
height of such Support Structure;

9. The Accessory Equipment shall, if reasonably possible, be placed at least ten
(10) feet above the ground;

10. The color of Antenna and Accessory Equipment shall be compatible with that
of the Support Structure;

11. The Facility (including the Accessory Equipment) shall not be illuminated;

12. Whether the proposed installation could cause harm to the public or pose any
undue risk to public safety;

13. Whether the proposed installation may interfere with vehicular traffic, passage
of pedestrians, or other use of the Right-Of-Way by the public; and

14. If the proposed installation will disturb conditions on the Right-Of-Way,
whether the Applicant can demonstrate its ability and financial resources to
restore the subject area to its pre-existing condition following installation.

C. Application Process.

1. Ataminimum, each application for a permit shall contain all of the following:

a. Engineering drawings depicting the type of Facilities, Support
Structure, and means and points at which such Facilities and associated
Accessory Equipment will be attached to a Support Structure;

b. Map(s) designating with specificity the location(s) of the requested
Facilities;

c. If the Facilities will be located on a Support Structure on the Right-Of-
Way that is owned by any entity other than the City or the Applicant, a
copy of any license, lease, agreement or other documentation
evidencing that the owner of that Support Structure authorizes the
Facilities to be attached thereto or agrees in principle to authorize that
attachment, provided that, if a representation is made to the City that the
attachment has been authorized in principle by the owner of the Support
Structure but the Applicant subsequently fails to furnish the City
documentation that finalizes any such agreement, the City may refuse
to issue the requested permit until that documentation is provided, or, if
the City issues the requested permit before receiving such final
documentation, the subject permit may be revoked and any license to
use that part of the Right-Of-Way be rescinded.

d. If the Applicant requests permission to place Facilities on a new Support
Structure, the substantiation therefor required by Section 2, Paragraph
B-7 of this ordinance.

e. An application shall not be deemed complete until the Applicant has
submitted all documents, information, forms and fees specifically
enumerated in this Ordinance that pertain to the location, construction,
or configuration of the Facilities or Support Structures at the requested
location(s). Within thirty (30) calendar days after an application for
permit is submitted, the City shall notify the Applicant in writing if any
additional information is needed to complete that application or
supplemental information is required to process the request. If the City
does not notify the Applicant in writing that the application is



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 6

incomplete within thirty (30) days following its receipt, the application
is deemed complete.

2. Time for Processing Application. Unless another date is specified in a written
agreement between the City and the Applicant, the City will have the following
time periods to make its final decision to approve or disapprove an application
for a permit contemplated in this ordinance and advise the Applicant in writing
of that determination:

a. Sixty (60) calendar days from the date an application for a permitis filed
with respect to a request to co-locate Facilities on an existing Support
Structure; and

b. Ninety (90) calendar days from the date an application for a permit is
filed with respect to a request to attach Facilities to a new Support
Structure.

To the extent additional information is required to complete the application
after it is filed, the applicable calendar day review period set forth in this
subsection shall be tolled and not continue to run until the Applicant has
provided any missing or requested supplemental information; provided that
tolling shall not occur if the City does not advise the Applicant in writing
of the incompleteness of a submitted application within thirty (30) days after
that submission.

3. Reconsideration/Appeal. Any Applicant that desires reconsideration of an

administrative diction by the City Manager to deny a request for a permit to
place a Facility or Support Structure on the Right-Of-Way may seek review,
modification or reversal of that decision by the City Council by submitting a
request for reconsideration with the City Clerk within twenty-one (21) calendar
days following the City Manager’s decision. That request for reconsideration
will be considered by the City Council at a regular Council meeting that will be
conducted as soon as practical after the request for reconsideration is made. If
no request of reconsideration is submitted, the decision of the City Manager
will be final.
Additionally, the Applicant, within thirty (30) days following a decision by the
City Council to deny either a) a request for reconsideration or b) a decision by
City Council to not approve the placement of a new Support Structure on the
Right-of-Way, may appeal either of those decisions by the City Council to the
Circuit Court of Jefferson County, Alabama or Shelby County, Alabama, as
applicable. If no appeal of those decisions of the City Council is made, those
will be deemed final.

D. Additional Requirements. Any Provider or Applicant to whom a permit is issued and
that places Facilities and associated Support Structures on the Right-Of-Way also shall
comply with the following requirements as long as those Facilities and Support
Structures are on or under the Right-of-Way:

1. Prior to installing the Facilities or Support Structures, the Applicant shall
provide the City a certificate(s) of insurance evidencing that it has obtained and
will maintain the following types of insurance in connection with its operations
on or use of the Right-Of-Way:



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 7

a. General Liability Coverage insuring the risk of claims for damages to
persons or property arising from or related to the installation,
construction, maintenance, operation or any use of the Facility or
Support Structure placed on or along the Right-of-Way by the Applicant
(or any of their contractors) with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per
occurrence; and

b. Workers Compensation Insurance as required by statute.

The General Liability coverage shall list the City of Vestavia Hills,
Alabama as an additional insured, and may be provided through a combination
of a primary and umbrella policies. All insurance policies shall be furnished by
insurers who are reasonably acceptable to the City and authorized to transact
business in the State of Alabama. On an annual basis following initial
installation, the Applicant also shall furnish the City a Certificate indicating that
the above-noted coverage remains and will remain in effect.

. All Facilities and associated Support Structures shall be installed, erected,
maintained and operated in compliance with applicable federal and state laws
and regulations, including, but not limited to, regulations of the FCC.
Following the installation of any Facilities and associated Support Structures,
the Provider or Applicant, upon reasonable request and for good cause, shall
furnish the City Manager a written certification from a licensed professional
engineer in the State of Alabama stating that those Structures have been
inspected and are being maintained, operated and used in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations, including those of the FCC that pertain to the
transmission of wireless communication signals. For purposes of this
provision, “good cause” shall mean circumstances have arisen that indicate the
Facilities and associated Support Structures have been damaged, are not
functioning in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, or otherwise
pose a hazard to the public. If those Support Structures should fail at any time
to comply with applicable laws and regulation, the Provider or Applicant, at
either of their expense, shall cause those Structures to be brought into
compliance with said laws and regulations within fifteen (15) days of the date
of any written notice to them from the City Manager of non-compliance, or
cease all personal wireless service operations related to those Structures until
the Applicant or Provider comes into full compliance with said laws and
regulations.

The Facilities and associated Support Structures must at all times be maintained
in good and safe condition. On no more frequent than a triennial basis, the City
Manager may request that the Provider or Applicant, at either of their expense,
furnish certification from a professional engineer who is licensed in the State of
Alabama that the Facilities and Support Structures are in sound condition.
Should that engineer deem those Structures unsound, the Provider or Applicant
shall furnish to the City Manager a plan to remedy any unsafe conditions or
structural defect(s) and take that remedial action at the Provider or Applicant’s
expense.

Each Applicant or Provider that applies for a permit to place Facilities
(including the Accessory Equipment) and Support Structures on the Right-Of-



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 8

Way and installs and utilizes those Structures shall defend, indemnify and hold
the City and its employees or officials, harmless from all demands, losses,
expenses (including attorney’s fees and court costs), claims for personal injury
or property damage, judgments or liabilities of any type that may be asserted or
claimed against the City (or its employees or officials) by any third person,
firm or entity that arise out of or relate in any manner to the following: 1) the
installation, construction, maintenance, use or operation of the permitted
Facilities, Accessory Equipment or any Support Structure on or about the Right-
Of-Way; and 2) the failure of the Provider or Applicant to perform any of their
respective responsibilities, obligations, and permit requirements in this
ordinance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Provider or Applicant shall not
be obligated to indemnity the City for claims resulting from the sole negligence
or willful acts of the City (or its representatives).
. Permitand License Fees. The Applicant for a permit to place Facilities and associated
Support Structures on the Right-of-Way shall pay the following types of fees that are
enumerated in the City’s officially adopted Fee Structure Ordinance, as amended:
1. Apermitapplication and review fee to be paid when an application is submitted;
2. A permit issuance fee for each Support Structure on the Right-of-Way
contemplated for attachment; and
3. An annual license fee per each Support Structure on the Right-of-Way
pertaining to the ongoing use of public property.
Removal, Relocation or Modification of Small Wireless Facility in the Right-of-Way.
1. Ninety (90) Day Notice to Remove, Relocate or Modify. Whenever the City
reasonably determines that the relocation is needed as described below, then
within ninety (90) days following written notice from the City, the Applicant
shall, at its own expense, protect, support, temporarily or permanently
disconnect, remove, relocate, change or alter the position of any small wireless
Facilities within the Rights-Of-Way whenever the City has determined that
such removal, relocation, change or alteration, is reasonably necessary for
(excluding beautification-only projects), as follows:

a. the construction, repair, maintenance, or installation of any City
improvement in or upon, or the operations of the City in or upon, the
Rights-Of-Way; and/or

b. if required for the construction, completion, repair, relocation, or
maintenance of a City improvement or project in or upon, or the
operations of the City in or upon, the Rights-Of-Way; and/or

c. because the small cell Facility or its related equipment is interfering with
or adversely affecting proper operation of any City-owned light poles,
traffic signals, or other equipment in the Public Way; and/or

d. to protect or preserve the public health or safety.

e. Inany such case, the City shall use its best efforts to afford Applicant a
reasonably equivalent alternate location. If Applicant shall fail to
relocate any Equipment as requested by the City within a reasonable
time under the circumstances in accordance with the foregoing
provision, the City shall be entitled to relocate the Equipment at
Applicant's sole cost and expense, without further notice to Applicant.



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 9

If, at any time during the Term for which the permit is granted, the City
determines that utility Facilities will be placed underground in an area
including any City-owned Facilities upon which Applicant has installed
Equipment, Applicant and the City will cooperate in good faith on the
design and installation, at Applicant's costs, of suitable replacement of
Applicant's Facilities, including decorative streetlight poles; and
Applicant agrees that if reasonably required by the City Manager or his
designee or upon final appeal by the Vestavia Hills Design Review
Board in order to ensure appropriately even and level lighting within a
previously unlighted area, additional Facilities, which may include
decorative streetlight poles beyond or more numerous than those
required for Applicant's Facilities, shall be installed. Applicant agrees
that decorative streetlight poles may be required by the City in the future
in the place of initially-installed standard-design streetlight poles, in
which replacement of the Applicant's Facilities and Equipment on
decorative streetlights that were initially installed standard-design
streetlight poles shall be solely at Applicant's cost. Further, Applicant
agrees that in such instances and at such time as replacement poles are
installed, the City may reasonably require that the configuration and/or
location of ground furniture (which references any equipment on the
ground that is needed to supply power or backhaul services to the small
cell Facility) and/or pole-mounted equipment or equipment cages be
changed (such as changing from pole-mounted equipment cages to
ground furniture), in the discretion of the City.

2. Emergency Removal or Relocation of Facilities. The City retains the Right and
privilege to cut or move any small wireless Facility or related structure located
within the Rights-of-Way of the City, as the City may determine to be
necessary, appropriate or useful in response to any public health or safety
emergency. If circumstances permit, the City shall notify the Applicant and
provide the Applicant an opportunity to move its own Facilities, if possible,
prior to cutting electrical service or removing a Facility and shall notify the
wireless Provider after cutting or removing a small wireless Facility.

Section 3. Placement of Small Cell Technology Facilities on Private Property.

A. A Provider or Applicant must obtain a permit from the City before placing, installing,
or constructing any Small Cell Technology Facility (and associated Accessory
Equipment) on any Support Structure that is located on private property, or
substantially modifying the position or characteristics of any such existing Facility
thereon.

B. The City Manager will review and administratively process any request for a permit to
determine whether, in the exercise of the City Manager's reasonable discretion, it
should be issued for the location and in the manner requested. In this process, the
burden is on the Applicant to demonstrate that the placement of the proposed Small
Cell Technology Facility and associated Accessory Equipment or Support Structure on
private property is the minimal physical installation which will achieve the



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 10

technological goal of enhancing the provision of personal wireless services. Except as
set forth in this section, this permitting process will not require the approval of any City
Board or City official other than the City Manager. The factors, guidelines and
requirements that the City Manager may consider and will apply when determining
whether to issue a permit for placement of Facilities and any associated Accessory
Equipment or Support Structure on private property include, but are not limited to, the
following:

1.

2.

The factors and requirements set forth in Section 2 of this Ordinance Number
2814,
Colocation. The guidelines in Section 2 of this Ordinance Number 2814 to
utilize existing poles and Support Structures for the placement of Facilities and
Accessory Equipment are also applicable when considering whether to permit
the installation of those Facilities and Support Structures on private property,
provided that City Council approval is not required before a permit is issued to
place a new pole or other Support Structure on private property if that action is
appropriate.
The Provider or Applicant shall use Stealth Technology when installing the
Facilities and associated Accessory Equipment on any building or accessory to
that building that is located on private property. Further, Stealth Technology
should be used when placing Facilities on other types of Support Structures on
private property unless the Applicant can reasonably demonstrate that, given
the nature of the requested application, the use of such Technology is (a)
unnecessary; or (b) impractical.
If Facilities are placed on an existing or new building or accessory to that
building, the following dimensional regulations shall apply:

a. Facade-mounted antennas shall not extend above the face of any wall or

exterior surface of the building.
b. Roof-mounted antennas and Accessory Equipment may be permitted on
buildings in accordance with the following table:

Height of Building Maximum Height of Facility Required Setback from

above Highest Point of Roof  Edge of Roof of Building

Up to 15 feet 8 feet, including antenna 1 foot for every foot of

height of equipment

15-35 feet 10 feet, including antenna 1 foot for every foot of

height of equipment

More than 35 feet 12 feet, including antenna 1 foot for every foot of

height of equipment

c. The antenna component of the Facilities shall be limited to a maximum
height of three (3) feet and a maximum width of two (2) feet; provided
that authorization to install antenna up to six (6) feet in height may be
permitted if a showing of the technological need for such equipment is
made and other requirements of this Section are met.



5.

6.

Ordinance Number 2814
Page 11

d. Accessory Equipment must be located in an equipment cabinet,
equipment room in an existing building or in an unmanned equipment
building. If the equipment building is freestanding, it shall conform to
the Vestavia Hills Municipal Code with respect to building setbacks,
that building shall not exceed 400 square feet, and its overall height shall
be limited to 15 feet (if located on the ground) measured from the
finished grade. Further, if an equipment building or cabinet is located in
a residential zone, or the nearest adjoining property is in a residential
zone, that building or cabinet shall be surrounded by landscaping to
provide a screen of the same height as the building or cabinet.

Application Process. Except as provided in paragraphs a and b immediately
below, the same application process that is set forth in Section >>>>>>>will be
utilized when processing any request for a permit to place Facilities or Support
Structures on private property, except that:

a. City Council approval to install a new Support Structure on private
property is not a condition for a permit to place Facilities thereon; and

b. If the Facilities are located on private property that is not owned or
exclusively used by the Applicant, instead of providing the
documentation contemplated in Section 2(c)(1)(c), the Applicant shall
present a license, lease, agreement or other documentation indicating
that owner of said property authorizes the Applicant the Rights to place
the Facilities thereon and access thereto, or that such owner agrees in
principle to grant the Applicant those Rights; provided that, if a
representation is made to the City that the owner of private property has
agreed in principle to grant those Rights but the Applicant subsequently
fails to furnish the City documentation that finalizes any such
agreement, the City may refuse to issue the requested permit until the
documentation is provided, or, if the City issues the requested permit
before receiving such final documentation, the subject permit and
license may be revoked.

Additional Requirements. Any Provider or Applicant to whom a permit is
issued and that places Facilities and associated Support Structures on private
property also shall comply with the following requirements as long as those
Facilities and Support Structures are located thereon:

a. All Facilities and Support Structures shall be installed, erected, and
maintained in compliance with applicable federal and state laws and
regulations, including, but not limited to, regulations of the FCC.

b. At least triennially following the installation of the Facilities or
associated Support Structures, upon reasonable request and for good
cause, the Applicant shall furnish the City Manager a written
certification from a professional engineer licensed in the State of
Alabama indicating that those Structures have been inspected and are
being maintained, operated and used in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations, including those of the FCC that pertain to the
transmission of wireless communication signals. For purposes of this
provision, "good cause" shall mean circumstances have arisen that



C.

Ordinance Number 2814
Page 12

indicate the Facilities and associated Support Structures have been
damaged, are not functioning in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, or otherwise pose a hazard to the public. If those Structures
fail at any time to comply with said laws and regulations, the Provider
or Applicant shall cause those Structures to be brought into compliance
with said laws and regulations within fifteen (15) days of the date of any
written notice to either of them of such non-compliance, or cease all
personal wireless communications operations related to those Structures
until the Provider or Applicant comes into full compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

The Facilities and associated Support Structures on private property
must at all times be maintained in good and safe condition.

C. Permitand License Fees. The Provider or Applicant for a permit to place Facilities and
associated Support Structures on private property shall pay the following types of fees
that are enumerated in the City’s officially adopted Fee Structure Ordinance as

amended:

1. apermit application and review fee to be paid when an application is submitted,

and,

2. a permit issuance fee per each Support Structure on private property
contemplated for attachment.

Section 4. Abandonment of Facilities on Right-of-Way.

If a Provider or Applicant abandons any Facility (including the Accessory Equipment) or
an associated Support Structure (collectively "Facilities” for purposes of this Section) that is
located on the Right-Of-Way, the following rights and obligations shall exist. The City may
require the Provider or Applicant, at their expense, to remove and reclaim the abandoned Facilities
within sixty (60) days from the date of written notice of Abandonment given by the City to them
and to reasonably restore the condition of the property at which the Facilities are located to that
existing before they were installed. If the Provider or Applicant fails to remove and reclaim its
abandoned Facilities within such 60-day period and the Facilities are located on the Right-Of-Way,
the City shall have the rights to:
remove them and charge its expense of any such removal operation to the account
of the Provider or Applicant,
purchase all abandoned Facilities at the subject location from the Provider or
Applicant in consideration for $1.00,
at the City's discretion, either resell the abandoned Facilities to a third party or
dispose and salvage them; provided that the proceeds of any resale of abandoned
Facilities by the City to a third party shall be credited to the account of the Applicant
or Provider that used those Facilities before the abandonment, and
charge any expense incurred by the City to restore the Right-of-Way to the account
of the Provider or Applicant.

1.

2.

3.



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 13

Section 5. Colocation.

To promote the public interest that is served by co-locating Facilities and associated
Accessory Equipment on existing Support Structures and thereby mitigating the installation of
additional Support Structures throughout the City, no person or entity (including any Provider,
Applicant, utility, or franchisee) that utilizes an existing Support Structure that is located on Right-
of-Way or on private property in the City and has space available thereon may deny a Provider or
Applicant the Right to use or access an existing Support Structure for purposes of attaching
Facilities permitted by this ordinance without sound operational, technological or other good
reason.

Section 6. Non-Applicability.

The placement of an antenna(s), Facilities or equipment related to the following types of
wireless communication services are exempt from regulation under this ordinance:

A. Amateur radio service that is licensed by the FCC if the Facilities related thereto are
not used or licensed for any commercial purpose; and

B. Facilities used by any federal, state or local government or agency to provide safety or
emergency services. Further, the provisions in this Article are supplemental to, and not
intended to alter, affect or modify the provisions in Article Il of Chapter 16.5 pertaining
to the placement or use of macro Telecommunications Towers.

Section 7. Repealer.

All Ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby
expressly repealed.

Section 8. Severability.

If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid
for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this
ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding.

Section 9. Effective Date.

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and posting/publication
as provided by Alabama law.

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 17th day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor



Ordinance Number 2814
Page 14

ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk

CERTIFICATION:

I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 0000 is a true and correct copy
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the
17" day of December, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said City.

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia Hills New
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the day of , 2018.

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



EXhibit - Ordinance No. 2814
PATRICK H. BOONE
ATTORNEY AND COUNSELOR AT LAW
NEW SOUTH FEDERAL SAVINGS BUILDING, SUITE 705
215 RICHARD ARRINGTON, JR. BOULEVARD NORTH
BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 35203-3720

TELEPHONE (205) 324-2018
FACSIMILE (205) 324-2295

E-Mail: patrickboone@bellsouth.net

December 5, 2018

By Hand Delivery

City Manager Jeff Downes
Vestavia Hills Municipal Center
1032 Montgomery Highway
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216

In Re: Small Cell Technology Facilities
Dear Mr. Downes:

‘ As requested, I have reviewed the proposed Ordinance to Adopt Regulations
for Small Cell Technology Facilities in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama prepared
by Greg Fender, together with the Memorandum submitted Minnesota attorneys,
Brian Grogan and Pat Zomer. I have no recommendations for additions, deletions,
changes and/or corrections and recommend the ordinance from a legal standpoint.

Sincerely,
Patrick H. Boone
Vestavia Hills City Attorney

PHB:gp
cc:  City Clerk Rebecca Leavings



Ordinance Number 2815
Page 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2815

AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH A FEE STRUCTURE FOR

SMALL CELL TECHNOLOGY FACILITIES IN THE CITY OF

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS ESTABLISHED BY

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2814

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2018, the Vestavia Hills City Council in a regularly
scheduled City Council meeting following a public hearing voted to adopt and approve Ordinance
Number 2814 to enact new regulations that apply to placement of Small Cell Technology Facilities
("Facilities” as defined in Ordinance Number 2814 and used herein) along public rights-of-way
and on private properties within the City of Vestavia Hills; and

WHEREAS, the regulations established in Ordinance Number 2814 will be codified in a
Chapter 16.5 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances (“Code”) entitled “Telecommunications”;
and

WHEREAS, Sections 2E and 3C of Ordinance Number 2814 provide that certain fees be
paid by personal wireless service providers or applicants in connection with the review of
applications, initial issuance and annual reissuance of permits required to construct, place,
maintain and operate Facilities in the City;

WHEREAS, the City Council herein amends Chapter 16.5 of the Code to set forth the
level of fees contemplated in Sections 2E and 3C of Ordinance Number 2814.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THECITY
OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, That Section 16.6 of The Vestavia Hills Code Of
Ordinances Be Amended To Include The Fees Set Forth In This Ordinance Number 2815, As
Follows:

SMALL CELL TECHNOLOGY FACIILITES FEE STRUCTURE

DESCRIPTION FEE
Permits to Place and Operate Facilities on Public Right-of-Way

Permit Application and Review Fee (Ord. No. 2814) $200.00
Initial Permit Issuance Fee per Support Structure (Ord. No. 2814) $100.00
Annual License Fee per Support Structure (Ord. No. 2814) $500.00
Permits to Place and Operate Facilities on Private Property

Permit Application and Review Fee (Ord. No. 2814) $200.00

Initial Permit Issuance Fee per Support Structure (Ord. No. 2814) $100.00




Ordinance Number 2815
Page 2

Section 2. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City
Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this
ordinance are hereby expressly repealed.

Section 3. Severability. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or
impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect
notwithstanding such holding.

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
adoption and publication as provided by law.

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk

CERTIFICATION:

I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2815 is a true and correct copy
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the
17" day of December, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said City.

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Public Library, Vestavia Hills New
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the __ day of , 2018.

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5117

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE

AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH THE

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION OF GREATER BIRMINGHAM

FOR AN APPLE GRANT FOR “VESTAVIA HILLS TRAFFIC

OPERATIONS STUDY PHASE 1~

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an Agreement for Services
(“Agreement”) with the Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham
(“RPCGB”) to receive funding under the Advanced Planning Program and Logical
Engineering (APPLE) program for a “Vestavia Hills Traffic Operations Study Phase 1”
(the “Project™); and

2. The project’s total cost is estimated at $60,000 which includes a local City match of
$12,000; and

3. A copy of said Agreement is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this
Resolution Number 5117 as though written fully therein; and

4. This Resolution Number 5117 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and
approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 17"" day of December, 2018.

Ashley C. Curry
Mayor
ATTESTED BY:

Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5117

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

This Agreement for Services (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of the day
of , 2019, by and between the Regional Planning Commission of
Greater Birmingham, a regional planning and development commission organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Alabama (“RPCGB”), and the City of Vestavia Hills,
Alabama, a municipal corporation (the “Governmental Entity” or “City”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Governmental Entity has applied to receive funding under the
Advanced Planning Program and Logical Engineering (APPLE) program for a “Vestavia Hills
Traffic Operations Study Phase 1” (the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Project has been selected for funding under the APPLE program;

WHEREAS, the APPLE grant for the Project will fund 80% (or $48,000) of the total
Project cost of $60,000, and the Governmental Entity will provide a local match in the
amount of $12,000 (or 20%) of the total Project cost;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, RPCGB is being engaged by the
City to perform the services contemplated for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to work in good faith to complete the Project in a timely
and professional manner.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants,
agreements, representations and warranties hereinafter set forth, the RPCGB and the
Governmental Entity agree as follows:

1. Engagement of RPCGB. The Governmental Entity hereby agrees to engage RPCGB
to perform the Project and services which are identified and described in the “Scope of
Work?” set forth on Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
RPCGB, from time to time, may request changes in the Scope of services to be performed.
Such changes shall be memorialized by written amendments to this Agreement that is signed
by both parties; these changes may include an increase or decrease in the amount of
Governmental Entity’s local match.

The Governmental Entity authorizes RPCGB to engage a third party consultant(s) that
has been approved by the City to assist in performing the Scope of Work. The RPCGB is
responsible for supervising, managing and paying any third party consultant for any services it
performs so that the Project may be completed in the orderly flow of the work.

2. Compensation. The parties agree that the total Project cost is $60,000 (including
the local match), and that the RPCGB will receive that total amount in consideration for its
performance of the services contemplated herein. The payment of this amount shall
constitute full and complete compensation for the services to be provided by RPCGB directly,
by its consultants or otherwise secured by RPCGB for the Project, and includes all expenses
arising from the performance of this Agreement.




Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5117

3. Payment by City. The City shall make payment to RPCGB for services in one (1)
lump sum installment of $12,000 (the local match) within thirty (30) days after the receipt of
invoice from the RPCGB. If this compensation is not paid when due, RPCGB shall not engage
in the provision of the contemplated services nor shall RPCGB employ third party
consultant(s) for the Project until such time as payment is made. If after a period of sixty
(60) days from the date of invoice the compensation is not paid, the Governmental Entity
acknowledges that it may forfeit all claims to the awarded amount for the Apple grant for the
Project.

Upon the successful completion of the Project and the generation of the contemplated
grant funds, the City agrees to execute appropriate documents and otherwise cooperate with
the RPCGB so it can receive those funds in consideration for the balance of the total Project
costs payable to it for its services.

4. Time of Performance. The RPCGB shall commence its performance of services
immediately after the receipt of payment by the Governmental Entity, and the RPCGB shall
complete Project in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A.

5. Financial Records. RPCGB shall keep and maintain complete and accurate books,
records, and procedures to account for all funds paid by the Governmental Entity in
accordance with this Agreement. RPCGB shall allow the Governmental Entity to examine,
copy, and audit all such books, records and procedures upon advance notice and during
RPCGB’s normal business hours. Any such examination or audit shall be conducted at the sole
cost and expense of the requesting party.

RPCGB shall retain all records with respect to the matters made the subject of this
Agreement for three (3) years following the termination or completion of this Agreement.
The obligations in this provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

6. Political Activity. No portion of any funds to be paid by the Governmental Entity
to RPCGB for the services contemplated herein shall be used for any partisan political
activity, or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office.

7. Qualified Personnel. RPCGB represents that it employs or will engage all
personnel required to perform the services made the subject to this Agreement. Any such
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationships with the
Governmental Entity relative to the Project, and all such personnel shall be reasonably
qualified to perform the services assigned to them.

8. Cooperation. All information, data, reports, records and maps as are available,
existing and necessary for performing the contemplated work shall be assembled for the
Governmental Entity by RPCGB or the third party consultant(s) employed by it. The
Governmental Entity agrees to cooperate with RPCGB and the third party consultants(s)
employed by RPCGB in all reasonable ways to allow them to conduct their planning and
development work without undue delay.

The RPCGB and Governmental Entity will ensure that all accident and traffic data provided by
ALDOT or any agency or political subdivision of the State of Alabama and used for safety
enhancement are kept confidential under 23 U.S.C. § 409 and not disclosed to third parties
without the express written permission of ALDOT. The data shall not be referenced,
disclosed, discussed, or otherwise made public. The provision of this data shall not be
considered as a waiver of the provision of 23 U.S.C. § 409. Upon execution of this Agreement,



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5117

the RPCGB and Governmental Entity agree that their agents, servants, officers, officials, and
employees, in both their official and individual capacities, shall not discuss, disclose, use,
publish, or release the data provided pursuant to the above referenced request without prior
written consent of ALDOT. Furthermore, if the data should be released or published without
the consent of ALDOT, or should an attempt be made to use the data in an action for damages
against the State of Alabama, ALDOT, its officials or employees’ access to data shall
terminate immediately. The State of Alabama and ALDOT expressly reserve the right under
23 U.S.C. § 409 to object to the use of the data, any opinions drawn from the data, and to
recover damages caused by the improper and unauthorized release of the data.

9. Ownership of Data. The Governmental Entity shall retain title to and all ownership
rights of all data and content provided by it to RPCGB for the Project, including but not
limited to geographic information systems, databases, maps, multimedia or images (graphics,
audio and video), text and the like provided by the Governmental Entity. The City grants
RPCGB the right to access and use this content for the purpose of complying with its
obligations under this Agreement.

10. Ownership of Work Product. Upon completion of the work or elements thereof
that are described in the attached Scope of Work, all reports, data, artwork, maps, stencils,
negatives, plates and other supporting materials prepared by RPCGB as a part of such work
shall become the exclusive property of Governmental Entity, and any reproduction or other
uses of such materials shall be approved by appropriate officials of the Governmental Entity.

11. Substantial Changes by City in Final Work Product. If the City makes any
substantial changes to the final work product after the Governmental Entity has taken
delivery and accepted that product, those changes shall not be attributed by the City to the
RPCGB. Substantial changes are defined as changes to plan content, policy and physical
development recommendations, regulations, codes, and ordinances that diminish the intent
and ability of the plan document to achieve its stated goals as agreed to and accepted by the
Governmental Entity.

12. Assignment/No Third Party Beneficiaries. Neither party may assign this
Agreement, or any of its rights, benefits or obligations herein, without the prior written
consent of the other party. Further, this Agreement does not confer, and is not intended to
create, any rights or benefits for any third party that is not a signatory to this Agreement.

13. Equal Employment Opportunity. In performing the work, RPCGB and its third
party consultant(s) shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, religion, national origin, sex, age or disability.

14. Termination. If RPCGB fails to perform any of its material obligations under this
Agreement in a timely and proper manner, or if RPCGB shall violate any of the covenants,
agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, the Governmental Entity may give written
notice of that breach to RPCGB. In the event RPCGB fails to cure such breach to the
reasonable satisfaction of Governmental Entity within thirty (30) days following RPCGB’s
receipt of such written notice, Governmental Entity may terminate this Agreement upon
written notice to RPCGB. In the event of such termination, the Governmental Entity shall be
entitled to a refund from RCPGB of any compensation paid by the City that is not earned by
RCPGB for services that it did not perform by the effective date of termination.

15. Relationship of the Parties. The RPCGB is an independent contractor of the City,
and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any agency, joint
venture, partnership or employer/employee relationship between them. Neither party shall

-3-



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5117

have the right or power to commit, contract for or otherwise obligate the other party to any
third person or entity. RPCGB shall be responsible for the collection, filing, and payment of
social security and other federal, state or local taxes or withholdings for RPCGB’s employees.
Governmental Entity shall have no right to control or direct the details, manner or means by
which RPCGB accomplishes the results of the services to be performed pursuant to this
Agreement.

16. Notices. Any notice to a party hereunder that is contemplated in this Agreement
shall be in writing and deemed given when it is either (a) personally delivered, or (b) sent by
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to

If to RPCGB:
Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham
Center for Regional Planning and Design
Two 20th Street North, Suite 1200
Birmingham, Alabama 35203
Attention: Michael Kaczorowski

If to Governmental Entity:
1032 Montgomery Hwy
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216
Attention: Christopher Brady, City Engineer

or at such other address as either party may advise the other in writing. Any such notice shall
be deemed delivered when placed in the mail, properly addressed, with postage prepaid.

17. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between
the parties with respect to the matters herein, and there are no agreements, understandings,
restrictions, warranties or representations between the parties other than those set forth
herein. The foregoing supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and understandings
relating to the subject matter hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned, duly authorized representatives of the parties
have executed this Agreement effective as of the date and year first above written.

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Jeffery Downes, City Manager

Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham

Charles E. Ball, Executive Director



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5117
Exhibit A — Scope of Work

Vestavia Hills Traffic Operations Study Phase 1
Feasibility Study: APPLE

Project Summary

The City of Vestavia Hills Traffic Operations Study Phase 1 will conduct traffic and safety operational
evaluations of selected intersections throughout the City of Vestavia Hills. The City will provide a list of
8-10 project locations for the study. For each project location, the study process will collect all relevant
data and undertake the analysis necessary to determine two improvement alternatives to correct
current deficiencies in intersection capacity and safety.

NTS Mountain Qb
* The Country Club ‘3 Brook r’\ LL !
of Birmingham o ‘ L k.
— N
; r I \\
2 & —
&5 3 g IR Sy o |
@ Birmingham Zoo @ 2 5 1
A
= J
; g
qoor® To%
(@ Homewood "’Jr%z} ‘ E
| ; &
&, \ | J
65 ] L | | ; J
A 3 o J =
- / f‘;ﬁl\‘( = T S ooy,
! D) / el A N ~
L2 5 2 [ @ Vestavia Country Club \,\ — @ L o
// > |'7_/ /‘/ _The Summit Birmingham Q
Vestavia Hills - [ v— Aasl| ]
g ‘ fils” _| N |
Mavis Discount Tirey i
&5 i
o) e -
‘ "51' Vestavia Hills City Hall
LA
% Lake Purdy
'2@%
D) %Q@D Next Levl Extreme

z i~ Air Sports
i*le_ruage-Chnsuanﬁ 2 o
Academy|| [, =

c— U gl

L

T 7 |
/

Sy Man dsts ®I018 Gannls  lintad Ctstae  Tarme  Sand fasdhack

PROJECT TASKS
The project tasks and subtasks required to address the scope of work shall include the following:

Task 1: Existing Conditions

Solicit input/comments from City officials to determine the locations to be studied

Finalize a list of potential locations to be studied within the City

Develop base maps using GIS data and aerial photography.

Collect appropriate traffic data as necessary to analyze traffic operations.

Conduct field reviews and observe existing traffic conditions.

Review and analyze crash data.

Summarize and document existing conditions and prepare a technical memorandum to be
presented to the City.

GmMmMUO®p

Page 1



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5117

Exhibit A — Scope of Work

Task 2: Concept Plan Development and Evaluation

A.

TIOMmMOON®

Analyze potential improvements.

Prepare conceptual drawings illustrating potential improvements.

Prepare a preliminary estimate of probable cost for each improvement.

Prepare for and attend a meeting with the City to present findings.

Revise plans to incorporate comments that may be received.

Prepare a draft Advanced Planning Report document.

Submit the draft document for review.

Revise the Advanced Planning Report document based on comments that may be received.
Submit the final Advanced Planning Report document.

Project Schedule

It is intended that the study will progress according to the schedule as shown in the figure below.

Project Schedule

Months

Task 1 2 3 4 5 6
1. Existing Conditions
2. Concept Plan Development and Evaluation

Exclusions from Scope of Work

The following services are not included in the scope of services: construction drawings, road or utility
engineering designs, and any other services not specifically listed in the project scope. Any Government
Entity directed changes to the final plan after the Government Entity’s approval of the draft revisions
shall be reimbursed in accordance with allocated billing rates in effect at the time the services are
performed.

Crash Data Restrictions

The Alabama Department of Transportation has directed that accident, incident, crash, injury, or fatality
locations not be shown or presented in association with descriptions of transportation projects, facilities,
or locations within the State of Alabama. This prohibition extends to all formal planning documents
(UPWP, Long Range Plan, TIP, Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans, Congestion Management Process or Plan), and
other documents that include narrative or tabular project listings or descriptions. [See Article 8 of the
Agreement.]

Page 2



	2018_1210CC_A
	2018_1119CC_work session
	2018_1126CC_M
	2018_1128CC_work session
	Resolution 5112
	5112
	Res_5112_Exhibit_A

	Resolution 5113
	Resolution 5114
	Resolution 5115
	Resolution 5116
	Resolution 5118
	Ordinance 2810
	Ordinance 2811
	Ordinance 2812
	Ordinance 2813
	Ordinance 2814
	Ordinance 2815
	Resolution 5117



